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Dear Concern, 

 

Also, please be informed that we received the below questions from interested bidders which were 

answered (in blue) by our team as the following: 

 
1- How would you like the Fixed Assets Software deployed, On-Premise or on Cloud? 

We would prefer that the fixed assets software be deployed On cloud. 
2- When is your target Go live date? And when is your target kickoff meeting date? 

The targeted “Go live” date is about 85 days from the date of signing the contract.  The target 
kickoff meeting date is 10 days from the date of signing the contract  

3- You mentioned in the RFP ‘’ Most of the work may be conducted remotely with occasional on-
site visits to seven provincial-level directorates in Anbar and Basra’’  
During which phase (Kickoff Meeting/Project Plan, Business Analyses/Gathering Requirements, 

Testing, etc..) will the occasional visits be conducted?  

We would expect that the selected vendor would be able to visit the provincial-level 

directorates in Anbar and Basra for the business analyses/gathering requirements, testing, and 

training phases.   

4- Where will the training sessions be conducted? Will it be in both Basra and Anbar? 
We would expect the training sessions to be conducted in Basra and Anbar for the respective 
provincial level directorates if the COVID-19 restrictions are lifted.  

5- Our company is in Erbil. could we submit our proposal too? in term of development and 

supporting and anything which code be done online it’s ok for us, our concern is in the training 

section if it’s a must to be done offline on the location of the projects? 

We expect the training to be conducted in Anbar and Basra for the provincial level directorates 

if the COVID-19 restrictions are lifted.  If not, we will work with the selected vendor to 

determine the most appropriate mechanism to provide the required training online, if needed. 

the training online,  

Is working remotely accepted in the project due to COVID-19 situation? If no, which tasks we 

cannot conduct remotely?  We would expect and prefer that the selected vendor would be able 

to visit the provincial-level directorates in Anbar and Basra for the business analyses/gathering 

requirements, testing, and training phases. If not, due to the COVID-19 situation, we will work 

with the selected vendor to determine the best method for working remotely to accomplish the 

required tasks under the scope of work. 

 
6- Is there a requirement to conduct physical count or inspection for the fixed assets? 

The Anbar and Basrah provincial level directorates should conduct a physical count or inspection 

of the fixed assets. 

7- Anticipated post-award deliverables (Page 10): Is there a specific template to be used or we can 
use our firm’s template? 
We will provide the selected vendor with a specific template to use to prepare the required 
post-award deliverables to be submitted to IGPA/Takamul.  

8- Scope of work for services and technical specifications (Page 15): The IGPA/Takamul plans to 
provide support to seven provincial-level directorates in Anbar and Basra to produce an 
electronic fixed assets registry system since they are currently using an outdated and inefficient 
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methods for tracking fixed assets. The Fixed assets registry to be provided in excel form or as a 
system? 
We expect the electronic fixed assets registry to be an electronic system and to be online to be 
able to connect the provincial level directorates to the financial administrative unit in the 
Governorate Office or the Administrative and Financial Affairs Directorate (AFAD). 

9- Scope of work for services and technical specifications (Page 15): Can you please list the 
system(s) used by the directorates of the GOI? 
Currently the provincial GOI directorates in Anbar and Basrah are using a manual, paper-based 
system to organize fixed assets information. 

10- Does directorates of the GOI have internal audit departments? 
The GOI provincial level directorates do have internal audit departments. 

11- Anticipated post-award deliverables (Page 10): What is the desired output of the Baseline 
report? 
The baseline report should detail the current process and procedures that the provincial level 
directorates use to record and track their fixed assets, what is required to create an electronic 
fixed assets registry, and to determine the fixed assets information that would need to be 
captured in the registry to be developed under this project.   

12- Will the useful life of the assets be provided to the consultants? And what is the criteria to 
determine the useful life of the assets? 
If the provincial level directorates have information on the useful life of the assets, the 
information should be provided to the consultants.  IGPA/Takamul through its local coordinators 
and advisors working in the provinces will be available to assist the consultants with obtaining 
whatever information is needed for the fixed assets registry project. IGPA/Takamul will work 
with the consultants to agree on the criteria to use to determine the useful life of the assets. 

13- What is the value and quantities of the total fixed assets? Is there a threshold for the specified 
items in the Fixed Assets Register? 
The selected vendor will work with the provincial level directorates to determine the value and 
quantities of the total fixed assets and the threshold for the specified items in the fixed assets 
register.  This can be accomplished when conducting the baseline assessment that will be due 
within 20 days of signing the contract. 

14- Can you please provide us with the expected project budget? 
We will expect you to prepare a project budget based on your past experience and market 
research on similar projects. 

15- Can you please provide us with the registration certificate of DAI Iraq? 

The registration certificate will be provided to the winning bidder if need be 

16- Data Gathering & Training: Concerning the requirement gathering, business process design and 
training that need to be provided to the directorate-level staff, in case the COVID 19 situation 
remain the same can this training be given remotely? 
We would expect and prefer that the selected vendor would be able to visit the provincial-level 

directorates in Anbar and Basra for the business analyses/gathering requirements, testing, and 

training phases. If not, due to the COVID-19 situation, we will work with the selected vendor to 

determine the best method for working remotely to accomplish the required tasks under the 

scope of work. 

17- Budget: the RFP mentioned the following “An award for a total firm fixed price, for values more 
than $150,000, for the provision of specific services, goods, or deliverables and is not adjusted if 
the actual costs are higher or lower than the fixed price amount. Offerors are expected to 
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include all costs, direct and indirect, into their total proposed price.”  Can you please elaborate 
this issue? can you please specify the maximum budge for this project.  
Irrespective of the clause above, the vendors should submit a reasonable budget that will allow 
them to carry out the work required under this RFP. 

18- Do we need to set meeting and produce the baseline with every directorate (14) separately? 

We would prefer that the selected vendor would schedule meetings with every directorate to 

prepare the baseline report to have a comprehensive understanding of the current state of fixed 

assets recording and tracking and to be able to determine the most appropriate software and 

system solution to create the fixed assets registry.  

19- Is there any current standard Operating procedures for each directorate? 

The provincial level directorates operate using the Government of Iraq Ministry of Finance rules 

and regulations for tracking fixed assets.  

20- Will IGPA/Takamul provide the Asset Registry system infrastructure (Servers, connections, 

desktops)? 

The provincial level directorate will be required to provide the fixed asset registry system 

infrastructure (servers, connections, desktops).  

21- What is the services expected from vendor in 6 months warranty period? 

The six-month warranty that is required of the selected vendor should ensure the fixed assets 

system that is developed runs and operates efficiently without errors and bugs.   

22- Do you want to include Maintenance processes in Asset Registry System? 

We would expect the selected vendor to demonstrate to the provincial level directorates how to 

properly maintain the fixed assets registry system to be developed under this RFP.   

23- Do you want to include Complete Purchasing processes (Purchase Requisitions, Request for 

Quotations, Purchase Orders, invoices, vendor management) in Asset Registry System? 

There will not be a need to include complete purchasing processes (purchase requisitions, 

request for quotation, purchase orders, invoices, vendor management) as part of the asset 

registry system. 

24- Do you want to include Complete inventory processes in Asset Registry System? 

We would like the selected vendor to include complete inventory processes in the fixed asset 

registry system. 

25- Do you want to include Contract Management processes in Asset Registry System? 

There will not be a need to include contract management processes in the asset registry system.  

26- Is the Currents Assets Data available? if no, who will collect them? 

There is currently fixed assets data available in the provincial level directorates as paper records.  

The selected vendor would be responsible for collecting this information as part of the process 

of designing the fixed assets registry database.  

27- What is the percentage of acceptable level of effort via remote work to IGPA/Takamul? 

28- We would expect and prefer that the selected vendor would be able to visit the provincial-level 

directorates in Anbar and Basra for the business analyses/gathering requirements, testing, and 

training phases. If not, due to the COVID-19 situation, we will work with the selected vendor to 

determine the best method for working remotely to accomplish the required tasks under the 

scope of work. 

29- Will IGPA/Takamul will provide remote access to Asset Registry System servers? 

The IGPA/Takamul project will not be providing remote access to the fixed asset registry system 

services.   
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30- The purpose of this exercise is to have an opening fixed asset registers for financial purpose in 

line with IFRS. Please confirm.  We expect the selected vendor to work with the provincial level 

directorates to create a fixed assets registry system that complies with current Government of 

Iraq Ministry of Finance rules and regulations for tracking and recording fixed assets. 

 

31- Does the current FAR have historical cost information that is considered accurate? 

The current Fixed Assets Registry should have historical cost information.  The selected vendor 

would have to work with the provincial level directorates to review this information to 

determine if it is accurate during the baseline assessment and for designing the fixed assets 

registry. 

32- When was the last FAR update done? 

The selected vendor would work with the provincial level directorates to determine when the 

last FAR update was done as part of conducting the baseline assessment. 

33- Can the current Fixed Asset Register (FAR) or equipment list be shared at this stage? 

The selected vendor would work closely with the provincial level directorates to get a copy of 

the current FAR or equipment list when conducting the baseline assessment.   

34- Do you want to establishes general ledger accounts for major asset classes, including applicable 

depreciation according to established guidelines? 

The selected vendor will need to determine if it is appropriate to establish general ledger 

accounts for major asset classes, including applicable depreciation according to established 

guidelines when meeting with the provincial level directorates to conduct the baseline 

assessment. 

35- Can we have a copy of your financial book and purchase orders? 

The program doesn’t see this as relevant and necessary to provide this information now 

36- Do you expect a valuation exercise to be in scope or can we rely on cost information included in 

the current fixed asset registers to estimate the value for missing assets. 

We would expect the selected vendor to determine if a valuation exercise should be done or if 

the vendor can rely on cost information included in the current fixed asset register to estimate 

the value for missing assets when conducting the baseline assessment. 

37- Estimated number of assets 

We expect the selected vendor to determine the estimated number of total fixed assets during 

the process of conducting the baseline assessment and survey. 

38- Scope / type of assets (Infrastructure, movables, vehicles, etc.) 

We expect the selected vendor to determine the type of assets that are currently recorded and 

tracked in the provincial level directorates during the process of conducting the baseline 

assessment and survey. 

39- What are the attributes included in the current FAR? Please provide all. 

We expect the selected vendor to determine the attributes included in the current fixed assets 

registry for the provincial level directorates during the process of conducting the baseline 

assessment and survey. 

40- Do you need to build a unique asset registration model for each directorate committee, or you 

need to unify the model for all directorate committee?  
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We expect the selected vendor to determine if a unique asset registration model will need to be 

build for each provincial level directorate or if a single model for the FAR can be created to serve 

all of the provincial level directorates. 

41- Are attributes such as asset description, date in use, estimated useful life, make, model, cost 

value, depreciation and net book value (NBV) included in the current asset register? 

We expect the selected vendor to determine if attributes such as asset description, date in use, 

estimated useful life, make, model, cost value, depreciation and net book value are included in 

the current fixed asset registry when conducting the baseline assessment.  

42- Are land and building included in scope of the verification exercise? 

We expect the selected vendor to determine if land and building should be included in the 

verification exercise when conducting the baseline assessment.  

43- Do you have capitalization threshold? Do you expect that we provide an estimated capitalization 

threshold based on our experiences?  

We would expect the selected vendor to provide an estimated capitalization threshold based on 

your experience and in compliance with Government of Iraq Ministry of Finance rules and 

regulations. 

44- Do you require a specific type of tags for different asset classes? Metal tags or polyester tags? 

Do you require RFID tagging? 

We would expect the selected vendor to determine the specific type of tags to use for different 

asset classes when collecting information from the provincial level directorates during the 

baseline assessment. 

45- Will you be providing the actual tags? If not, do you require that we include the price of tags 

with our total fee? 

No tags will be required as part of implementing this project. 

46- Would it be possible to request extension for proposal submission? 

The extension is always possible if there is a justifiable reason for it 

47- Is the project proposed timeline is final, or we may suggest a different timeline? 

We can say it is final, however, the bidders should feel free to propose another timeline if they 

believe there is a reason and or will provided timeline will result in better outcomes.  

48- What taxes shall we expect to deduct from the proposed fees? 

This is completely at bidder’s discretion. If the bidder advanced to the final stages of the 

evaluation, and the program thinks the proposed price is unreasonable, will result in 

negotiation.  

49- What is the expected role for Iraqi Change Agent? Where shall we expect to cross in the 

objective? 

The Iraqi Change Agents will be invited to attend one of the training sessions that will be 

conducted by the selected vendor  

50- If some of the stakeholder/directorates refused to sign-off or delayed the sign-off for 

unjustifiable purposes, what could be the solution? 

This can only be discussed at the time when such scenario occurs. The program will always help 

the selected vendor, talk to beneficiaries and try to find a viable option so the vendor can 

continue with the implementation.  
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51- Do you agree to proceed in requesting the approvals being obtained from a representative 

sample (i.e. approval committee or a certain percentage) of the stakeholders? rather than all 

Directorates? 

We agree that it is acceptable to request approvals from a representative sample of the 

stakeholders rather than all directorates in the interest of time to be able to meet the required 

timeframes for the deliverables under this RFP> 

52- In pages 10, 11 & 12: If the phase ends in 2 weeks or so, why it is repeatedly mentioned “End of 

Contract” in the milestones table? What does it mean? 

It means that the selected vendor must submit a number of documents/reports by the certain 

date. These documents are called deliverables and only upon satisfactory performance the 

program will process the payment.  

53- Is assets data available in English? 

The assets data would not be available in English 

54- Does the scope include support in Assets Management software system-selection? Or the scope 

is to implement the assets management software? 

The scope includes implementation of the fixed assets registry software. 

55- The scope of work mentioned data collection, does this data collection or any part of the scope 

of work include listing of assets items without counting quantities under each asset item, or with 

counting quantities under each asset item? 

We expect the selected vendor to work with the provincial level directorates to train the 

directorates to be able to count the quantities under each asset item as part of the training on 

the new fixed asset registry software 

56- If the previous answer is “with counting”, is it the responsibility of the contractor to 

participate/supervise/execute current assets count? If the answer is yes, are we expected to be 

responsible for the authenticity / to certify current asset count? 

We do not expect the selected vendor to participate/supervise/execute a current assets count 

and to be responsible for the authenticity or to certify the current asset count. 

57- Data collection will be handled by a certified accountant, so which of the two option describes 

this person: (Option A: a certified accountant part of our team?) Or (Option B: an external 

certified accountant who is expected to certify and stamp the assets list as an external audit 

office i.e. third party? 

We would prefer that the selected contractor have a certified accountant as part of the team.  

58- Is it expected to put or modify the description of each assets by the contractor? 

The selected contractor will not be expected to put or modify the description of each asset.  

59- Regarding the answer above related to the certified accountant, should we budget to pay him 

from our side? Or we should not budget since he is representing an external audit office? 

We would prefer that the selected contractor have a certified accountant as part of the team.  

60- What are the accounting standards which the Project should follow (IFRS, Iraqi Accounting 

Standards or else)? 

The project should follow the Iraq accounting standards which are the Unified Accounting 

System and decentralized accounting system.  The  

61- Is it expected to put or develop the bar coding methodology/system by the contractor? 

The selected contractor will not be expected to put or develop a bar coding 

methodology/system. 
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62- Would you provide an estimation of the total number of assets by category and by location? 

This information should be discussed with the provincial line directorates and identified by the 

vendor during the first phase of the implementation when conducting the survey and baseline 

assessment. 

63- Does the scope of work cover linear and non-linear assets? If yes, would you provide the total 

quantum of linear assets and non-linear assets, with a further breakdown and definition if 

possible? 

This information should be discussed and identified by the vender during the first phase of the 

implementation of this scope of work when conducting the survey and baseline assessment. 

64- Would you provide an indicative current asset hierarchy structure? 

Please refer to the Government of Iraq Unified Accounting System and decentralized accounting 

system. 

65- How many assets are available within the asset management system or asset register? Are all 

these assets part of the scope of this project? 

This information should be discussed and identified by the vender during the first phase of the 

implementation of this scope of work when conducting the survey and baseline assessment. 

66- Would you provide the current useful life policies by category? 

Please refer to the Government of Iraq Unified Accounting System and decentralized accounting 

system. 

67- Are all assets operated currently with different asset management practices? For example, are 

there separate practices, policies, procedures? 

This information should be discussed and identified by the vender during the first phase of the 

implementation of this scope of work when conducting the survey and baseline assessment. 

68- Is AFAR list currently available which contain at least the Tag numbers, fin asset number, 

description, install date, acquisition cost, useful life and the general location description. 

This information should be discussed and identified by the vender during the first phase of the 

implementation of this scope of work when conducting the survey and baseline assessment. 

69- Is the Parent/child relationship of assets registered in the ERP? 

This information should be discussed and identified by the vender during the first phase of the 

implementation of this scope of work when conducting the survey and baseline assessment. 

70- Are we allowed/expected to change the classification or grouping of any assets as per 

accounting standard or it is the responsibility of the directorates? 

This information should be discussed and identified by the vender during the first phase of the 

implementation of this scope of work when conducting the survey and baseline assessment. 

71- Who will specify what reports should be come from system? And what are these reports? 

The beneficiaries will be involved in the development of the fixed assets system and their input 

should be considered regarding the reports to be generated by the system and the contents of 

the reports. 

72- On Page 18 Line 22 it indicates “Password-secure online database hosted on the Ministry of 

Communication server” 

a. Is it one implementation and will be using network to support the 2 provinces Or 

separate implementations/Instances? 

This project will be one implementation with a network to support each province. 
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b. All hardware needed will be provided as required for the software by the Ministry of 

Communication or DAI. 

The hardware required should be provides based on the Ministry of Communications 

requirements for software. 

73- On Page 18 Line 23 it indicates “Uses licensed software (purchased or designed by the vendor), 

per USAID regulations”; You will provide any 'other' 3rd party license, for example: Operating 

System (if required), Database, etc. or we have to include in the pricing and purchase in per 

USAID regulation? 

This vendor must be proactive, think out of box and provide a licensed software that will suit the 

most the requirements of this RFP. The vendor is encouraged to look at USAID regs if need be 

ensuring that is not overstepping any red lines when procuring this type of software.  

74- On Page 42 Line 13 under Attachment J: Proposal Checklist it indicates “Vendor 

registration/License documents in host country”; Does this mean we MUST be registered PRIOR 

we submit the proposal, or we can register after the award and before we start the work? 

The vendors must follow instructions provided in the RFP as each proposal will be evaluated 

based on the criteria and actual facts presented in the technical proposal. For this reason, it is 

always good to provide a license registration that you can perform work in the cooperating 

country. If selected, the program would expect vendor to start implementing as soon as 

possible, so not sure how long it will take for someone to get registered. In some cases, a proxy 

can be an option.  

75- On Page 9, Point 6.2 sub Point 1 it says (Provide evidence of the required business licenses to 

operate in the host country (e.g. origination registration in the host country, or the organization 

proxy registration in the host country). Does this mean our organization MUST be registered in 

Iraq? 

The vendors must follow instructions provided in the RFP as each proposal will be evaluated 

based on the criteria and actual facts presented in the technical proposal. For this reason, it is 

always good to provide a license registration that you can perform work in the cooperating 

country. If selected, the program would expect vendor to start implementing as soon as 

possible, so not sure how long it will take for someone to get registered. In some cases, a proxy 

can be an option.  

76- Can the Offerors be from other Arab countries (Lebanon , UAE).  

If the company is Iraqi or USA in origin or registered legally in Iraq and has work permit to work 

in the host country (Iraq) then the company will be considered within the geographic code 

covering this RFP. 

Note: any information provide for the Geo-code section is not considered as substitute to the 

“Responsibility determination” requirements. 

 

77- Related to Geographic code (in the RFP).  It states code 937 which means that advanced 

developing countries cannot bid on it.  Could you please confirm that Jordanian companies are 

allowed to bid on this?  

If the company is Iraqi or USA in origin or registered legally in Iraq and has work permit to work 

in the host country (Iraq) then the company will be considered within the geographic code 

covering this RFP. 
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Note: any information provide for the Geo-code section is not considered as substitute to the 

“Responsibility determination” requirements. 

 

 

Best Regards, 

 

IGPA-Procurement 


